ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 25, 2014
9:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair

Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senat or John Coghi | |

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Bert Stednman
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 106

"An Act providing for certain individuals who have erected a
building on land leased from the state to receive a preference
right to purchase certain state |land w thout conpetitive bid."

- MOVED CSSB 106( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 133
"An Act establishing May 31 of each year as Katie John Day."

- MOVED SB 133 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO 182

"An Act relating to salary differences in collective bargaining
agreenents subject to the Public Enploynent Relations Act that
are based on a difference in the cost of living outside the
state and the cost of living in the state; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 106

SHORT TI TLE: STATE LAND DI SP./ LEASEHOLDER PREFERENCE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MEYER

01/ 22/ 14 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 10/ 14
01/ 22/ 14 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 25, 2014



01/ 22/ 14 (S) STA
02/ 25/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 133
SHORT TI TLE: KATI E JOHN DAY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) OLSON

01/ 22/ 14 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 22/ 14 (S) STA

02/ 25/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 182

SHORT TITLE: PUBLI C EMPLOYEE SALARY DI FFERENTI ALS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(S) DYSON

02/ 19/ 14 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 14 (S) STA
02/ 25/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR KEVI N MEYER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 106.

EDRA MORLEDGE, St af f

Senat or Meyer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided a comrittee substitute (CS)
overvi ew for SB 106.

WYN MENEFEE, Deputy Director

Di vi sion of M ning

Al aska Departnment of Natural Resources

Anchor age, Al aska,

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Explained the nunicipality land acquisition
process and its inpact on private | eases with the state.

ROGER BURGGRAF, representing hinself
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 106.

MEL G LLIS, representing hinself

Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 106.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 25, 2014



JOY DEMMERT, Staff

Senator O son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of SB 133.

DAVI D SCOTT, Staff

Senator O son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overview for SB 133.

MAUDE BLAIR, Vice President

Al aska Federation of Natives

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 133.

SUSETTNA KI NG Advocate

Al aska Native Sisterhood-Canp 70
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 133.

KATHRYN MARTI N, Vice President

Aht na, Inc.

d ennal | en, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 133.

FRED JOHN, representing hinself
Del ta Junction, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 133.

HAVEN HARRI S, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 133.

JULI E ROBERTS- HYSLOP, Vi ce President
Tanana Chi efs Conference

Tanana, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 133.

JOSHUA BANKS, St aff

Senat or Dyson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overview of SB 182.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 25, 2014



Nl CKI NEAL, Director

D vi sion of Personnel and Labor Rel ations

Al aska Departnment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded departnental information on SB 182.

KATE SHEEHAN, Deputy Director

Labor Rel ati ons

Di vi sion of Personnel Labor Rel ations

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: | nt r oduced her sel f for depart nment al
guesti ons.

REUBEN YOST, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Al aska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed administration questions for the
Al aska Marine H ghway System

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:02: 30 AM

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators G essel, Wel echowski, and Chair Dyson

CHAIR DYSON reviewed the commttee's calendar. He said three
bills will be heard in the comrttee neeting and announced his
intention, pending the approval of the conmmittee, to nove SB 106
and SB 133 fromcomm ttee.

SB 106- STATE LAND DI SP. / LEASEHOLDER PREFERENCE

CHAI R DYSON announced the consi derati on of SB 106.

9:04: 02 AM

SENATOR KEVIN MEYER, Alaska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska,
said SB 106 provides for <certain individuals to receive a
preference right to purchase certain state land wthout a
conpetitive bid.

9: 04: 33 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL nmoved that the commttee adopt the CS for SB
106, | abel ed 28-LS0864\ N.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 25, 2014



CHAI R DYSON said seeing no objection, version N is the working
docunent .

SENATOR MEYER expl ai ned that the purpose of SB 106 is to allow
state land | easehol ders the first opportunity and first right of
refusal on land that they have made investnents on and depend on
for their livelihood. He noted that SB 106 was initiated by a
constituent who has invested a substantial anmount of his
retirement funds in a hunting |odge on sone |and he had | eased
fromthe state for a long period of tine. He explained that his
constituent requested to be given first opportunity to purchase
his |eased land before the property was sold or traded to a
muni ci pality. He explained that current state statutes allow for
an individual to purchase up to five acres of |and under certain
conditions as follows:

* Mist have erected a building on the | and,

e The land nust have been used for nore than five years for
bona fi de busi ness purpose,

e Mist be under a federal permt or wthout the need for a
permt,

» For state selection, nmust be under a state permt or |ease,

e The business the land is used for mnust have produced at
| east 25 percent of an individual's total incone for the
five years preceding the application.

He said SB 106 would extend the first right of refusal to
i ndividuals who have state issued |eases. He noted that the
right of first refusal currently applies only to federal |ands.
He specified that the nmunicipal entitlenment selection also neans
"borough."” He said SB 106 allows for a preference to purchase up
to five acres of land wthout a conpetitive bid under the
foll ow ng conditions:

* Individual nust have erected a buil ding,

* Individual nust have used the building for a bona fide
purpose for ten years or nore,

* Individual has received at |east 25 percent of their incone
for the last ten years preceding the application.

He explained that the programs specifics are in the case of an
adm ssible state land entitlement of the state |and where an
i ndi vidual neets the conditions previously outlined and applies
for preference right within 120 days of notice of a nunicipa
entitlenment selection. He specified that an individual will be

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 25, 2014



granted a preference right to purchase |land and added that the
land will be sold at a fair narket value. He noted that SB 106
also provides a nechanism for which a nunicipality my be
conpensated for the entitlenment land if a |easehol der chooses to
purchase the land. He said there is no cost associated with SB
106 and the Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR) has submtted
a zero fiscal note.

9:07:43 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL addressed a nmenorandum attached to the bill from
Don Bullock [Legislative Counsel]. She said M. Bullock asked

guestions that pertained to whether the acreage will be credited
against a nunicipal entitlement and where the noney ultimtely
goes. She asked Senator Meyer to address M. Bul | ock' s
guesti ons.

SENATOR MEYER replied that he wll have M. Morledge answer
Senat or G essel's inquiry.

9:08: 21 AM

EDRA MORLEDGE, Staff, Senator Meyer, Alaska State Legislature,
Juneau, Al aska, explained that a conmttee substitute (CS) was
brought forward in response to M. Bullock's scrutiny. She said
the bill's previous version did not have a nechanism by which
the nmunicipalities could be conpensated for land that they may
have wanted to choose, but the first right of preference goes to

the |easeholder. She explained in the CS, I|ines 26-30, as
fol |l ows:
The anmpbunt of Jland, wthin an overall nunicipal

entitlenent, shall be reduced by the anount of |and
covered under this section, up to the five acres that
an individual can exercise their nonconpetitive bid
rights; however, subject to appropriation, the revenue
from the purchase of the parcel will be given to the
muni ci pality if the  nuni ci pal entitlenment | and
selection is approved. W felt this CS addressed the
concerns that the drafter had wth the origina
ver si on.

CHAI R DYSON asked to clarify in the previous statenent, "Shall
be reduced by the anount of |and covered under this section."

M5. MORLEDGE answered that the land of a |easeholder that

exercises their first right of refusal wll reduce the |and
entitled to the municipality.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 25, 2014



CHAI R DYSON asked to clarify that a municipality is going to
have a state owned |land as an inholding within a nunicipality.

VB. MORLEDGE responded that theoretically, Chair Dyson's
assertion could be correct. She deferred to the DNR on how sone
of the specifics would work.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked for an explanation on the statenent
| ocated on page 2, line 9, and "Were there is a valid munici pal
entitlenment selection on state land.”

9:11: 53 AM

WYN MENEFEE, Deputy Director, Division of Mning, Al aska
Departnent of Natural Resources, Anchorage, Alaska, answered
that when a nunicipality has an entitlenment they first select
their desired acquisition lands and the DNR proceeds with a
consideration process. He noted that nunicipalities inevitably
over-select for their entitlenent due to a certain percentage
being denied. He explained that nunicipality selections are
constrained by legal land classifications.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  asked for an explanation under what
circunstances a nunicipality would have a right to an
entitlement selection on state |and.

MR. MENEFEE replied that a nmunicipal entitlenent occurs when a
borough or municipality is forned. He explained that a |aw
dictates that entitlenent is cal culated on a percentage basis.

9:14: 12 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if Anchorage, Fairbanks, or Juneau
still have opportunities for state land entitlenent.

MR. MENEFEE answered that nost of the main nunicipalities have
already received their entitlenent. He said newy forned
bor oughs have room for additional state |and entitlenent.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSEKI asked to clarify that state |and
entitlement applies to newer formng nunicipalities.

MR. MENEFEE replied correct. He noted that sone entitlenent
| ands have not been fulfilled in Petersburg, Lake and Peninsul a,
and Northwest Arctic boroughs. He said the DNR is wapping up
land entitlement in the Denali Borough.

CHAIR DYSON asked to wverify that the term "municipality”
includes cities and boroughs.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 25, 2014



MR. MENEFEE answer ed correct.

CHAI R DYSON asked if a qualified citizen would get title to the
| and or just the inprovenents.

9:16: 48 AM

MR. MENEFEE answered that a qualified individual may purchase
the land with inprovenents. He noted that the land acquisition
would not apply to subsurface. He added that land sold to an

i ndi vi dual Wil be decrenmented from the municipality's
entitlement. He specified that an individual's land is taxabl e,
but |ease revenue will not exist due to the land purchase. He

said the nunicipality wuld receive the noney from the
i ndi vidual's | and purchase.

9:19:48 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how many properties would be affected
by SB 106.

MR. MENEFEE replied that currently there are 8 to 12.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what specifically occurs when a
muni ci pality selects land that has a citizen with a business.

MR. MENEFEE answered that the existing lease is transferred to a
muni cipality and the lease's terns are honored. He specified
that | ease renewal is strictly up to a nunicipality.

9:22:54 AM

CHAIR DYSON asked what happens to private |easeholders on
federal land when a transfer occurs to either a municipality or
native corporation

MR. MENEFEE answered that he is not sure. He assuned that the
federal transaction is simlar in nature where valid | ease terns
are honor ed.

9:24:31 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted his intent to address unintended
consequences of the bill. He asked if there is any |likelihood

for people to start |leasing state land for future nonconpetitive
bid possibilities when new nunicipalities my be formed or
expanded.

MR. MENEFEE noted that the qualifications stipulated in SB 106
makes Senator W el echowski's scenari o i nconcei vabl e.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 25, 2014



CHAI R DYSON wel conmed the testinony fromtwo citizens.

9:26: 52 AM

ROGER BURGCGRAF, representing self, Fairbanks, Al aska, stated
that he supports SB 106 as a neans of protecting many
i ndi vidual s and businesses from |osing devel oped property. He
said in many cases an individual's primary |ivelihood and assets
have been tied up into | eased state properties that were thought
to be secure.

9: 32: 58 AM

MEL A LLIS, representing hinself, Fairbanks, Al aska, said he is
one of the eight or ten that M. Menefee noted. He explained
that he has a lodge on land that was given to the Lake and
Peni nsul a Borough. He revealed that he has invested over $1
mllion into his leased |land. He asserted that boroughs are
specifically selecting the best properties. He said he has been
guiding in Alaska for 43 years and is just about out of business
because of his |eased |and situation. He declared that SB 106 is
a good first step.

CHAI R DYSON recalled that he had spoken to M. Gllis regarding
his | ease situation

MR. G LLIS answered correct.

CHAI R DYSON assuned that an attenpt was nade to see if there was
any way to help out people like M. GIllis and concluded that
t here was not.

SENATOR MEYER replied that SB 106 does not help M. Gllis wth
his current situation. He set forth that SB 106 wll help
individuals in the future.

9: 36: 24 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if nore than five acres is involved.

MR. MENEFEE replied that SB 106 only allows for up to five
acres. He added that an applicant can further negotiate with a
muni ci pality for additional |and.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what would stop the DNR from selling
the land right now as opposed to | easing.

MR. MENEFEE expl ai ned that statutes dictate that only settl enment
| and may be sol d.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 25, 2014



CHAI R DYSON asked if DNR in favor of SB 106.

MR. MENEFEE replied that the Administration is in favor of SB
106 in the revised version as it stands.

CHAI R DYSON commented that he appreciates what seens to be fair
consideration the state is doing in protecting Al askans and
| andhol ders.

9:40: 44 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL noved CS for SB 106, |abeled 28-LS0864\N from
committee with zero fiscal note and individual recommendati ons.

9:41: 00 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that w thout objection, [CSSB 106(STA)]
noved out of the Senate State Affairs Standing Conmtt ee.

9:41: 03 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the commttee will stand at ease.

SB 133- KATI E JOHN DAY

9:41: 47 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the conmttee will take up SB 133.

9:42: 00 AM
JOY DEMVERT, Staff, Senator O son, Alaska State Legislature,
Juneau, Al aska, read a statenent as foll ows:

Katie John is an Athabascan icon to Alaska, she is
best known for her determnation and success in
fighting for subsistence rights. Katie John is also
known for traditional teachings and way of life, she
lived to be 97 years old. Katie John was passionate
about preserving the Athabascan culture and | anguage
and she also helped to create the al phabet for the
Ahtna dialect. In 2011, Katie John received the
honorary doctor of |aws degree from the University of
Al aska Fairbanks. Katie John and her husband raised 14
of their own children and 6 foster children, she left
behind nore than 250 descendants. Wen considering
this bill, one mght ask is it necessary to pass a
bill for Katie John's |egacy, ny answer would be "yes"
because by supporting this piece of |legislation we are
sending a nessage to Alaska and to the entire world

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 25, 2014



that we love and support our Alaska native cultures
and the people. Each year on May 31 all Alaskans can
reflect on the cultures and values of Al aska and
peopl es' connection with the land, be it native and
nonnati ve.

M5. DEMVERT thanked the commttee for hearing SB 133, a bill
t hat honors the Athabascan icon of Al aska.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked about the significance of May 31 for
Kati e John Day.

9:44:15 AM

DAVID SCOIT, Staff, Senator O son, Alaska State Legislature,
Juneau, Al aska, explained that May 31 is the date that Katie
John passed away. He noted that there was no record of Katie
John' s actual birthday.

9:44: 44 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the commttee will take a brief at
ease.

9:44: 49 AM

CHAI R DYSON stated that he is confident SB 133 is going to pass
out of commttee and go directly to the Senate Floor through the
Rul es Conmittee. He said the conmittee is very respectful of the
testifiers who want to praise Katie John and her inpact on
Al aska.

9:46: 32 AM

MAUDE BLAIR  Vice President, Alaska Federation of Natives,
Anchorage, Alaska, read a statenment in support of SB 133 as
fol |l ows:

There are about 120,000 Al aska native people in the
state and the vast majority of them still participate
in hunting, fishing, and gathering food during the
year. Subsistence is a way of life for us and has been
the basis of our cultures for thousands of years. As
the state's population has grown, we have had to
bal ance the interests of the different wuser groups
with the need to sustain the resources for future
generations. Katie John grew up living a traditional
lifestyle at Batzulnetas, a traditional Ahtna village
where her famly had a fish canp. The state of Al aska
closed the subsistence fishery there shortly after
st at ehood. In 1980, Congress passed the Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- February 25, 2014



National Interest Lands Conservation Act (AN LCA
whi ch provides for a subsistence priority for hunting
and fishing on federal public lands in Al aska by rule
of residence; it allows state managenent on federal

lands if the state enacts a |aw that extends the rural

priority for subsistence uses to nonfederal |ands. The
state did enact a rural preference on nonfederal |ands
following the passage of ANLCA;, however the State
Board of Fisheries denied a request by Katie John and
Doris Charles to reopen the fishery at Batzulnetas. In
1985, Katie John and Doris Charles sued the state of
Alaska for not providing a subsistence priority
required under AN LCA. What we call the "Katie John
Cases" was actually a series of different |awsuits
that involved several plaintiffs that had wound
through the state and federal court systens. Katie
John was the lead plaintiff and very nuch a |eader in
the push to preserve the subsistence rights that we
nati ve people have enjoyed for thousands of years. The
Al aska Suprenme Court ruled in 1989 in another case
that the rural residency preference the state had
adopted to conply with ANILCA and manage federal |ands
had violated the state's constitution, so the federa

government took over managenent of the federal
priority on federal |ands, but refused to extend the
authority over any fisheries. Katie John and Doris
Charles then sued the United States in federal court
to protect their fishing rights wunder AN LCA The
Ninth GCrcuit Court of Appeals held in 1995 and again
in 2001, that the federal priority for rural wusers
applied to Batzulnetas and all other areas where the
United States holds reserved water rights; this is
good news because it neant that Katie John and other
rural residents have a priority for subsistence
fishing on federal I|ands, which mke up about 60
percent of the state. As was nentioned already, Katie
John didn't get to hear the nobst recent part of the
case, it's still going on and it has been going on for
29 years; she passed away on May 31. May 31 is also
significant because it is the day the state of Al aska
all owed native people to put their fish-wheels in the
water. Each year at our Al aska Federation of Natives
(AFN) conventions, we pass resolutions of inportance
to us and the very first one we passed |ast OCctober
was asking the state of Alaska to name May 31 "Katie
John Day."

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- February 25, 2014



9:50:16 AM

SUSETTNA KI NG, representative, Al aska Native Sisterhood-Canp 70,
Juneau, Alaska, read a statenment in support of SB 133 as
fol | ows:

| am representing the Alaska Native Sisterhood Canp
70. Qur mssion is to better the lives of native
people and their famlies, to fight for civil rights
and the rights of all Al aska native people, to share
the cultural know edge, wi sdom and artistic beauty of
native tribal society, and to strive for the spirit of
brot herhood and sisterhood anong all people. CQur
ancestors fought for the betternent of Al aska natives,
just as our Athabascan sister, Katie John. Katie John
bel onged to the Athabascan nation, she was inportant
and the key of subsistence fight, and for like many in
her time it was a fight for our way of life. Katie
John worked for Alaska native because it was right
thing to do. Witten records shown, 2001, her fight
took her to the Ninth GCrcuit Court of Appeals ruling
stating that subsistence fishery protection provided
under Title 8 of Alaska National Interest Lands
Conservation Act (ANILCA) did in fact to all navigable
waters in which the federal governnent own reserved
water rights, effectively allow ng subsistence fishing
to continue unrestricted in those areas. The Al aska
Native Sisterhood-Canp 70 stands with our brothers and
sisters from the northern part of the state of Al aska
in honoring Katie John, the subsistence fight she
fought not only benefited the northern, but us in the
Sout heast Panhandle. W support SB 133 to establish
Katie John's Day each year on May 31. Katie John was
an Al aska native woman we all strive to live like.
Katie John was celebrated and honored in the Al aska
Federation of Natives (AFN) in 2003; we celebrate her
by gathering of many. The Alaska Native Sisterhood-
Canp 70 encourages enacting SB 133 and honoring Dr.
Kati e John.

CHAIR DYSON remarked that SB 133 will pass out of conmttee
today. He stated that testinony is not needed to get SB 133 out
of commttee. He encouraged testifiers, if possible, not to
repeat what was said by previous individuals.

9:53:17 AM
KATHRYN MARTIN, Senior Vice President, Ahtna, Inc., dennallen,
Al aska, thanked Senator O son and Senator Ellis for introducing

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- February 25, 2014



SB 133 for consideration. She noted that she is the
granddaughter of Katie John. [She provided testinony that
concurred wth previous wtnesses in support of SB 133.] She
sumarized that naming May 31 as Katie John Day would be an
i ncredi ble honor and a show of respect for a woman who |ived her
whole |ife taking care of others.

9:56: 09 AM

FRED JOHN, representing hinself, Delta Junction, Al aska, said he
is the son of Katie John. [He provided testinony that concurred
Wi th previous witnesses in support of SB 133.] He set forth that
Katie John taught her children to profess that native Al askans'
ways are not a threat to the state of Al aska.

CHAI R DYSON stated that the conmttee is honored to nove SB 133
f or war d

9:58: 15 AM

HAVEN HARRI'S, representing hinmself, Anchorage, Al aska, said he
supports SB 133. He asserted that Katie John's contribution to
all of Alaska is sonmething that should be shared in our history
books. He said it would be a tremendous honor for Katie John to
be recogni zed every year on the day of her passing.

9:58: 55 AM

JULI E ROBERTS-HYSLOP, Vice President, Tanana Chiefs Conference,
Tanana, Al aska, said she supports the passing of SB 133 [and
provi ded testinony that concurred with previous w tnesses.] She
sumari zed that the state of Al aska has an opportunity to honor
and acknowl edge a woman of strength and courage, a wonman that
fought hard for a way of life that cannot be forgotten.

10: 00: 35 AM

CHAI R DYSON asked if there is anyone in the conmttee room that
wants to testify on SB 133. He announced seeing none, public
testinony is closed.

10: 00: 51 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL noved SB 133, | abel ed 28-LS1288\A from comrittee
with zero fiscal note and attached individual recomendati ons.

10: 01: 06 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that wi thout objection, SB 133 noved out
of the Senate State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

10: 01: 10 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the commttee will stand at ease.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- February 25, 2014



SB 182- PUBLI C EMPLOYEE SALARY DI FFERENTI ALS

10: 02: 08 AM
CHAIR DYSON, bill sponsor, introduced SB 182, version N He
noted that his office was asked to consider the bill from the

Adm ni stration. He explained that a law from 1977 established a
protocol for Cost of Living Adjustnents (COLA) or Cost of Living
Differentials (COLD) for enployees of the Al aska Marine H ghway
System (AWVHS) vessels that conpared the cost of |living in
Seattl e, Washington. He pointed out that all of the other state
enpl oyee groups have a COLA based upon Anchorage. He said data
shows that the cost of living for Anchorage and Seattle are
virtually equal. He said SB 182, if it passes, wll put AWMHS
enpl oyees on the same COLD system as all the rest of the state
enpl oyees. He explained that current bargaining agreenents wll
not be changed and SB 182 wll only be enforced for the
agreenents that cone in the [future]. He remarked that there
could be a significant savings to the state, especially during
ti ght budget tines.

10: 04: 25 AM
JOSHUA BANKS, Staff, Senator Dyson, Alaska State Legislature,
Juneau, Al aska, announced that he will provide a brief sectiona
for SB 182.

MR. BANKS addressed Section 1 as foll ows:

Adds a subsection in AS 23.40.075, this is the section
for itens that are not subject to bargai ning between
the state and public unions for collective bargaining
agreenents. This section wll prohibit parties from
adjusting the salary of instate enployees based on the
difference of the cost of living in Al aska and outside
of Al aska. The purpose of this section is to ensure
the legislative intent of taking out the cost of
living differential and it wll not elimnate other
options that the state has and the public unions have
to pronote living in the state of Al aska. W are nost
certainly in favor of providing incentives for state
enpl oyees to live inside the state.

MR. BANKS addressed Section 2 as foll ows:

Section 2 wll repeal AS 23.40.210 and reenacts it
wi thout the statutory requirenment to provide the cost

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 25, 2014



of living differential for enployees |iving outside of
state based on the cost of living differential between
Al aska and Seattle. The cost of living differential is
not necessarily a problematic portion of this statute,
it is the fact that we have to go back to cost of
living differential from 1977 that we felt we ought to
change the statute. W want to ensure that the
benefits for public enployees reflect current cost of
living and this statute as it stands I|limts the
ability to do so. This section also deletes |anguage
used to determ ne how an enployee will be eligible for
the cost of living differential and the |anguage that
is reenacted is currently in the law, so we are not
addi ng anything to this section.

10: 06: 59 AM
He addressed Section 3 as foll ows:

Section 3 ensures that SB 182 wll only affect
bargai ning agreenents settled on or after t he
effective date. Agreenents passed before the effective
date wll still include the cost of living
differential for state enpl oyees.

He addressed Section 4 as foll ows:
Section 4 establishes an i medi ate effecti ve date.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked what bargaining units SB 182 wll
apply to.

MR. BANKS replied that primarily the three maritinme unions noted
in the packets presented to the commttee that shows the
percentage of the unions that |ive outside of the state.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if SB 182 wll apply to those
bargaining units within the state that have geo-differentia
adjustnents |ike Public Safety enpl oyees.

MR. BANKS answered that the bill will not affect enployees that
currently receive COLD. He said an exanple is State Troopers
receiving pay adjustnents that conpensate for living in Bethel
or None.

10: 08: 23 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI addressed the fiscal note and set forth
that the collective bargaining agreenent is odd. He asked to

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- February 25, 2014



verify that the collective bargaining agreenent wth the
I nternational Organization of Masters, Mites & Pilots (MWP)
sets a base salary rate wth an added cost of |iving adjustnent
for enpl oyees that live in Al aska.

MR. BANKS answered yes. He explained that the adjustnment is
either paid hourly or a lunp sumon top of the nonthly salary.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked to clarify that the fiscal note is
$7.6 mllion. He surmsed that SB 182 would keep the rates for
those that live outside the sanme and drag down the Al askan
sal ari es.

CHAIR DYSON asked for the Admnistration to answer Senator
W el echowski ' s questi on.

10: 10: 11 AM
NI CKI NEAL, Director, Division of Personnel and Labor Rel ations,
Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration, Juneau, Al aska.

10:10: 17 AM

KATE SHEEHAN, Deputy Director, Labor Relations, Division of
Personnel Labor Rel ations, Departnent of Adm nistration, Juneau,
Al aska.

M5. NEAL stated that she would provide background on the cost of
living differential as foll ows:

AS 23.40.210 requires that ~collective bargaining
agreenents include a pay plan that is designed to
provide a Cost of Living D fferential (COLD) between
enpl oyees residing in the state and enpl oyees outside
of the state. In 1977, that statutory authority was
amended and the anendnents were targeted at the marine
units. Essentially, the salaries paid to enployees
residing outside of the state were to remai n unchanged

until the difference between those salaries and the
salaries paid to enployees residing in the state
reflects a difference between the cost of living in

Al aska and Seattle. Essentially, in 1977 the cost of
living in Alaska was much higher than Seattle
Subsequently, COLD was negotiated into collective
bargai ning agreenents; it provides a differential to
those living in Al aska. Currently the COLD for the
Masters, Mates & Pilots (MWP) and for the Marine
Engi neer s’ Benef i ci al Association (MEBA), ranged
bet ween $453.80 to $664.40 per pay period; they have

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- February 25, 2014



26 pay periods period in a year, those rates |ast
changed in 2007. The Inlandboatnmen's Union, it is
actually added to their hourly rate; they currently
receive approxinmately $4.06 to $5.05 per hour for
COLD.

10: 12: 19 AM
CHAIR DYSON asked if the Inlandboatnen's Union nenbers work
sonmet hing 2,000 hours a year.

M5. NEAL answered yes. She explained that the |nlandboatnen's
Uni on nmenbers work approxinately 2,184 hours per year.

She continued to explain COLD as foll ows:

In 2008, with funding approved by the Legislature, the
Di vi si on of Per sonnel conduct ed a geogr aphi c
differential study and that was done by the MDowel |
Group; that study indicates that the cost of living in
Seattl e and Anchorage are about equal .

CHAIR DYSON recalled that all of the state's regiona
conpensation tied to the cost of living is based on Anchorage as
zero and any other sites are plus or mnus.

M5. NEAL answered correct. She explained that Anchorage is
consi dered as the "base."

CHAI R DYSON renarked that those are pretty significant nunbers.
He asked if the MWP nenbers al so work 2,184 hours per year.

MS. NEAL answered correct.

CHAI R DYSON nentioned speaking to various union nenbers that
noted that part of the attractiveness of working for AWVHS was
due to salary and benefits. AVHS conpensation plan attracts and
keeps qualified people. Wth the conpetition for |icensed
mariners around North Anerica, recruiting and retention wll be
an issue. He asked for soneone to address his query and the
Adm ni stration's response.

10: 15: 04 AM

REUBEN  YOST, Deputy  Conmi ssi oner, Al aska  Depart nent of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOI&F), Juneau, Al aska,
noted that he oversees AMHS. He addressed the situation of
recruitnment and retention if SB 182 were to go into effect under
its current version. He said DOT&F would negotiate base-pays,

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 25, 2014



taking into account what the drop in pay was for Al askans. He
noted that DOT&PF does a lot of recruiting for all three
maritime unions, particularly MV&F and MEBA from outside the
state. He pointed out that AVMHS has very good people who choose
to work from Seattle or points even further south based on their
salary. He addressed geographic differentials and noted that
except for the crews the three day-boats as follows: W
Fai rweat her, MW Chenega, and the MW Lituya; AMHS enpl oyees are
not required to live in a particular comunity. He said AVHS
enpl oyees are currently paid COLD regardl ess of whether they
live near a change-port. He noted that DOT&PF believes it is
appropriate to look at COLA for day-boat crew nmenbers due to the
need to live in particular comunities because the vessels have
no acconmmodati ons.

10: 16: 10 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL joined the commttee neeting.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if it is fair to say that if SB 182
passes, conpensation for people who live in Seattle or in the
Lower 48 will renmain the sane and residents of Alaska who work
for the AMHA will receive a pay cut.

MR. YOST answered correct. He specified that the assunption is
not hi ng changes during negotiations. He noted that DOT&PF is
al ready considering during negotiations to apply the COLD noney
that m ght go away to the base rate of pay.

10: 18: 08 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI reiterated that the |anguage in the
collective bargaining agreenent is odd and decades old. He
asserted that negotiations without a COLD provision will end up
raising the rates of people in the Lower 48 and keeping
Al askan's rates flat or |ow

MR. YOST replied that Senator Welechowski's assertion is a
possibility. He noted that right now a person can |ive wherever
they choose to |live. He added that people have a choice to live
in an area with a lower cost of living. He pointed out that AMHS
enpl oyees are receiving COLD that was originally put into place
because there was a significantly higher cost of living in
Al aska.

CHAI R DYSON asked to clarify that the conpensation for people
that live in Seattle will stay the sane.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- February 25, 2014



MR. YOST answered yes, based on SB 182. He specified that his
point in negotiations is that there will be an effort to raise
t he base salary for everyone.

CHAI R DYSON said his understanding is if SB 182 passes and COLD
goes away, COLA would be applied as done with other state
enpl oyees.

MR, YOST replied that AVHS only has three boats where people
have to live in a given comunity.

10: 20: 16 AM
CHAIR DYSON asked to clarify that an enployee that lives in
Al aska woul d get COLD li ke every other state enpl oyee.

MR.  YOST answered that he does not believe Chair Dyson's
assunption is correct and deferred to the Departnent of
Adm ni stration.

V. NEAL specified that the option for the geographic
differential application as it applies to the three marine units
woul d need to be negotiated through collective bargaining. She
agreed that COLD for the three day-boats would be relatively
easy, but applying COLD would be nore difficult for the rest of
the enpl oyees. She said negotiating for a COLD is certainly an
opti on.

CHAIR DYSON asked if all of the other state bargaining units
have the sane COLA in their agreenents.

MS. NEAL replied yes. She noted that a new rate agreenent with
the Labor, Trades and Crafts Unit has yet been obtained, but
others do include it.

SENATOR W ELECHOAMSKI reiterated that SB 182's inpact wl
increase the wages of Seattle workers and decrease the wages of
Al aska workers.

MR. YOST answered correct. He said the standpoint from DOT&PF
and the Admnistration is to either keep a COLD inequity in
pl ace forever or do sonething to address it. He noted the issue
wi th applying geographical differential for crew nenbers who do
not work on day-boats where individuals are conpensated for
choosing to live in the nost expensive parts of the state.

10: 23: 38 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 25, 2014



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the Parnell Adm ni strati on
supports SB 182.

MR. YOST answered yes. He remarked that the current COLD gives
vessel enployees trenendous incentive to live in the state and
for nonresident enployees collect COD as well. He said renoving
COLD and coming up with sonme other form of conpensation would
free DOT&PF from being involved in residency investigations. He
noted that DOT&PF has quite a few residency cases that typically
go to arbitration and usually DOT&PF prevails. He said DOT&PF
would like to not be in the position of having to investigate
where peopl e have their primary residence.

CHAI R DYSON said he suspected that there will be quite a bit of
public testinmony and |lots of questions fromthe commttee.

10: 25: 24 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the commttee will stand at ease.

10: 25: 34 AM

CHAI R DYSON announced that public testinmony will be taken at the
next comrttee neeting. He asked that testinony not be repeated.
[SB 182 is held in committee.]

10: 26: 01 AM

There being no further business to conme before the committee
Chair Dyson adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee at 10:26 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- February 25, 2014



